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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

St. Mark's Church was first erected in 1828 but has
undergone substantial changes. An article published in the
12/20/1912 edition of the Orange Advertiser gives a description
of the original church.

"It was a plain rectangular stone building, 40 x 60
feet, of which the east and west were in part coincident
with the walls as they now stand, and a line drawn across
the present nave between the south corners of the transepts
would make the rear. The chancel was at the south, or
street end of the building, between the two front doors,
and, of course, the seats faced that way. Immediately
behind the chancel was the tower, the ground floor of which
was used for the vestry or robing room. The furnishing of
the chancel was of the old-fashioned, so called "three
decker" type, the pulpit was built against the wall about
ten or twelve feet above the level of the church floor, the
reading desk, at which Morning and Evening prayers were
said, was immediately below and front, and attached to the
front of the desk, about two feet still lower down, was the
altar, and around the whole was a communion rail of a semi-
circular form, reaching around nearly to the church doors on
either side. The only access to the pulpit was from the
vestry room on a flight of steps invisible to the congregation,
and through a door in the back. There were two aisles in
the church, and the pews were furnished with doors. The
ceiling was flat and the windows were of plain glass immovable
sashes. There was a gallery across the rear or north end of
the building, in which the organ was placed and the choir
sang."

In 1851 St. Mark's church was redesigned in the gothic
revival style. Both its interior, with exposed heavy wooden
truss work, and its exterior resemble English country church
architecture. The entire structure is built of triassic
sandstone. The window traceries and mullions in the original
structure were wood and the traceries and mullions of all
subsequent additions were of stone.

The south facade of St. Mark's has a square tower
surmounted by an octagonal spire which located in the south-
west corner of the building. The tower is divided into
three stories by horizontal moldings. The first story
contains a pointed window with two lights and an oriel
between on the west side and a pointed doorway on the south
front. There is a single slender pointed window in the
center of each side of the second story. An interesting

feature of the third story which helps one to see the subtle
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

St. Mark's Episcopal Church has two main areas of
significance: architecture and religion. Architecturally
it is the best example of the gothic revival style in West
Orange. It was also re-designed in 1869 by Richard M.
Upjohn. St. Mark's is the third oldest episcopal parish in
Essex County and is the second oldest church in the Oranges.

Originally under the pastoral charge of a church in
Newark. Orange became a missionary station in 1825. The
pastor had several other stations under his care and could
only visit Orange once a month. Because of this a group of
churchmen were motivated to form a parish which was incor-
porated two years later.

In 1829 there were 54 families and pew holders in the
parish. The cornerstone of the original church was laid May
12, 1828. With the building of the church and securing a
pastor St. Mark's began to grow. In 1831 the vestry decided
to build a tower and purchase a bell. 1In 1833, an organ was
installed in the gallery at the North end of the church.

In 1837, Reverend James Williams became the pastor of
St. Mark's. His rectorship lasted 46 years until 1883.
During this time many changes were made to the church
building. In 1845 the present rectory was built. There were
two major changes to the church structure itself. 1In 1851,
the nave was extended and the two transepts and a chancel
were added to the northern end of the building. A partial
basement was also added. 1In 1852 the basement of part of
the church was completed for use by the Sunday School, 1In
1861, the nave was extended approximately fifteen feet
toward the south, the o%Qthwer church stood in the middle LEEL 1Y
of the west facade wasfi{gggdown and a new facade was built ~. .
with a tower and spire ifi the southwest corner. 9f““7}
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DESCRIPTION

shift from the horizontal motif of the cornice moldings and
the verticality of the spire is the fact that the cornice
separating the third story continues around the four sides
between the buttresses, while it is not continued on the
buttresses themselves. The third story is articulated by a
pointed lourvered belfry opening on each of its sides. The
entire tower recedes

on each of the three levels, gradually tapering inward and
upward into an octagonal spire pierced by twelve small
gabled windows and topped by a cross. The narthex with its
pitched roof and heavily splayed front portal is situated to
the right of the tower on the south facade. Two recessed
heavy wooden doors, each with a small rectangular recessed
window next to them, are located on the sides of the narthex.
A large pointed window containing five lights and an oriel
with a quadrifoil motif can be seen behind the narthex in
the upper portion of the south facade. Immediately above
this window is a small mandorla shaped window flanked by two
rosettes with a trifoil motif in each. Two lancets below
these rosettes are on either side of the narthex.

The east facade has five buttresses between which are
five bays containing two sets of double lancets surmounted :
by an oriel. The corner buttresses between the south and ) &ngafﬂ
east facades have gabled tops whild the others do not. All v %Y. .-~
the buttress piers taper in a two 'level tiered recession. '
The Sunday school addition is connected to the east facade
at the east transept. The east transept is articulated by a
single light on each side and corner buttressing. One can
visibly distinguish additions to the structure, eg., the
Sunday school room, the chancel, and the rector's office,
since the brownstone encasing these areas is rusticated
rather than smoothly cut and adzed as it is on the main body
of the church. 1In the narthex and transept additions, the
brownstone is smoothly cut but the blocks are longer and
narrower in these areas.
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DESCRIPTION

The chancel appears on the north side of the church.
Its rusticated brownstone rear wall is pierced by a large
pointed window containing three lights, each surmounted by
an oriel, with the two outermost lights being smaller than
the one in the middle.

The west facade has the rector's office which is
connected to the chapel in the west transept and the rest of
the church by the sacristy. The west transept has a pointed
door above which a rosette with a quadrifoil motif is
located. The remainder of the west facade has four buttresses
between which are four bays that alternately contain two
sets of double lancets and no lancets. The tower stands in
place of the corresponding fifth bay on the west facade.
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SIGNIFICANCE

In 1869, plans for a new roof, including decorative
trusses, brackets and interior ceilings and also, a slate
roof were drawn by Richard M. Upjohn. The work was done in
the summer of 1869 at a cost of $10,637.37. 1In 1877 the
parish building on the east side of the church was built.

St. Mark's has not undergone any significant changes in
the past 75 years. Except for minor repairs there have been
no alterations that have changed the character of architectural
significance of the building in its community.

West Orange grew into a fairly significant and affluent
community and because of this its is easy to understand the
attitude that would have prompted the remodeling of the
church in the 1860's and its style in relation to the rest
of the community presents the same outlook. It is the best
example of gothic revival architecture in West Orange and is
a noted mark in the community and is worthy of inclusion in
the National Register of Historic Places.






